ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2013
1:31 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lesil MCGuire, Vice Chair
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Select Conmttee on Legislative Ethics
Gary J. Turner

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BI LL NO. 22

"An Act relating to the commencenent of actions for felony sex
trafficking and felony crimes involving child pornography or
i ndecent materials to mnors; relating to the hunman trafficking;
relating to the crine of sexual assault; relating to the crine
of referral of sexual felonies to a three-judge panel; relating
to the definition of 'sexual unlawful contact; relating to
forfeiture for certain crinmes involving prostitution; relating
felony' for sentencing and probation for conviction of certain
crines; relating to the to the tine in which to comence certain
prosecutions; relating to release for violation definition of
"sex offense" regarding sex offender registration;, relating to
protective of a condition of release in connection with a crine
i nvol ving donestic violence; relating orders for stalking and
sexual assault and for a crime involving donestic violence; to
interception  of private comrunications for certain sex
trafficking or human relating to the definition of ‘'victim
counseling <centers' for disclosure of certain trafficking
offenses; relating to wuse of evidence of sexual conduct
concerning victinms of comunications concerning sexual assault
or donestic violence; relating to violent «certain crines;
relating to procedures for granting inmunity to a witness in a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 18, 2013



crimnal crines conpensation; relating to certain information in
retention el ection of j udges pr oceedi ng; relating to
consideration at sentencing of the effect of a crime on the
victim concerning sentencing of persons convicted of felonies;
relating to rem ssion of sentences relating to the tine to make
an application for credit for tine served in detention in a for
certain sexual felony offenders; relating to the subpoena power
of the attorney treatnent program or while in other custody;
relating to suspending inposition of general in cases involving
the use of an Internet service account; relating to reasonable
sentence for sex trafficking, relating to consecutive sentences
for convictions of certain efforts in child-in-need-of-aid cases
i nvol vi ng sexual abuse or sex offender registration; relating to
mandatory reporting by athletic coaches of <child abuse or
neglect; making conform ng anmendnents; anending Rules 16,
32.1(b)(1), and 32.2(a), A aska Rules of OCrimnal Procedure,
Rule 404(b), Al aska Rules of Evidence, and Rule 216, Al aska
Rul es of Appellate Procedure; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 22
SHORT TITLE: CRIMES; VICTIMS; CH LD ABUSE AND NEGLECT
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 16/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (S) JUD, FIN

01/ 30/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 30/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 30/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 04/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 04/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 11/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 11/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 11/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 15/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 15/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 18/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 18, 2013



ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General

Crimnal Division

Legal Services Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a sectional analysis for Version U
of SB 22.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Publ i c Def ender

O fice of the Public Defender

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, AK

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on SB 22, Version U

GARY J. TURNER, Appoi ntee

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Sol dot na, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee in confirmation
heari ng.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:31: 23 PM
CHAIR JOHAN COGH LL called the Senate Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Dyson, O son, and Chair Coghill

SB 22-CRIMES; VICTIMS;, CH LD ABUSE AND NEGLECT

1:31:35 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL announced the consideration of SB 22 and noted
that CSSB 22, Version U, was before the commttee. He inforned
menbers that the packets contained the questions and concerns
fromthe ACLU of Al aska and the conmments by the drafter.

1:32:13 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Crimnal D vision,
Legal Services Section, Departnment of Law (DOL), said the CS
reflects the discussions that took place with the conmttee and
the public defender. She reported that the Al aska Suprene Court
recently accepted DOL's petition for review of the Collins case,
which is addressed in Sections 1, 21, and 22. Because it is not
unusual for a year to pass before a case is decided, it is DOL's
judgnment that it is still a good idea to keep these sections in
the bill.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 18, 2013



SENATOR DYSON asked if the controversy had to do w th whether
the law followed the Ilegislative intent and if the court
interpreted it correctly.

M5. CARPENETI said yes, the issue is whether the court of
appeal s correctly interpreted the legislative intent in 2006.

SENATOR DYSON asked if she agreed that the admnistration's bill
makes a strong assunption of what the legislative intent was in
2006.

MS. CARPENETI said that was her belief.

SENATOR DYSON asked how this legislature could weigh in on what
it believes the legislative intent was in 2006.

M5. CARPENETI expl ained that the approach this bill takes is to
adopt a statement of legislative intent and findings saying that
this | egi slature bel i eves t hat t he court of appeal s
msinterpreted the intent of the legislature in 2006. The bil
al so specifically excludes consideration of the two mtigating
factors that the court of appeals adopted when it rendered that
deci si on.

Section 2 renoves the statute of limtations for a victim of
felony sex trafficking or felony human trafficking to bring a
cause of action for civil damages. M. Carpeneti relayed that
the Departnent of Law s response to M. Mttnman's comments in
this area would be that there are other crinmes for which there
is no statute of limtations - felony sexual abuse of a mnor
fel ony sexual assault, and unlawful exploitation of a mnor. The
victinms of these crinmes and the crinmes of sex trafficking and
human trafficking are in a simlar, less powerful position in
relation to the offender.

1:36: 29 PM

SENATOR DYSON questioned why a defendant who has paid the
crimnal penalty should spend the rest of his life worrying that
the victimmy file a civil action.

M5. CARPENETI said that victinms of sex trafficking, |ike victins
of sex abuse of a mnor, have been in an incredibly powerless
position conpared to the defendant and nmay need tine to nmake a
deci sion about bringing a civil suit. She pointed out that it
won't be any easier to bring a law suit 10 or nore years |ater

whether it's crimnal or <civil. The point of renoving the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 18, 2013



statute of I|imtations is that when the evidence is still
avai lable, there is no good reason for limting a victins
ability to get reparation from a defendant who caused the victim
significant harm

SENATOR DYSON asked why a successful prosecutor wouldn't ask the
judge to order restitution at trial.

IVS. CARPENETI said that's what happens, but it doesn't
necessarily nmean that the order of restitution wll be
ful filled.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the judge wouldn't order the restitution
to continue until it was fulfilled.

M5. CARPENET!I responded that the law wouldn't allow a victimto
collect restitution and also receive damges for the sane
injury. She reiterated that this sinply |eaves open the
possibility for this kind of law suit. She offered to | ook for
data on how often victinms of sexual abuse of a mnor or sexua
assault bring cases after the crimnal case is finished. |If
there was proof and it was a valid cause of action, it would be
a shane to have it cut off by the statute of limtations.

1:41: 31 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL asked what a person would have to prove in this
circunstance to get a court hearing.

M5. CARPENETI said the burden of proof in a civil case is by a
preponderance of the evidence, but she would defer further
expl anation to soneone fromthe G vil Division.

SENATOR DYSON asked her to entertain the idea of putting sone
si debars on the provision.

M5. CARPENETI clarified that the victim has to show how he or
she was harnmed and the danages that were suffered.

SENATOR DYSON indicated that he'd like to hear from soneone from
the G vil Division.

1:43:52 PM

M5. CARPENETI continued the sectional analysis of Version U.
Section 3 is unchanged. It prohibits sexual penetration between
a probation or parole officer and a person on probation or
parole. It also prohibits sexual penetration between a juvenile

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 18, 2013



probation officer or a juvenile facility staff and a person
either on juvenile probation or in the facility.

SENATOR DYSON suggested that it should apply when a probation or
parole officer is supervising a person on probation or parole.

M5. CARPENETI responded that the justification is the sanme as
for correctional officers and police officers; the power of the
office itself is the concern

SENATOR DYSON asked if it would apply to a teacher.

M5. CARPENETI said she believes so; a teacher has power over a
st udent .

SENATOR DYSON asked about a counsel or.

M5. CARPENETI said it would be appropriate as long as the
counsel or or teacher knew that the child was a student in the
school it would be appropriate to prohibit penetration and
cont act .

SENATOR DYSON opined that there was sonmething wong with that
| ogi c.

1:47:22 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he agreed with the intent, but this
unintentionally crimnalizes other relationships. He asked if
the prohibition should extend to supervisors of probation or
parol e officers.

M5. CARPENETI responded that the bill talks about probation and
parol e officers, but there could be coercion in the situation of
a supervisor of a probation officer just by the office.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI reiterated his belief that the provision
crimnalizes relationships and maintained that it was bad public
policy and probably unconstitutional.

1:49: 04 PM

M5. CARPENETI pointed out that there is a cul pable nental state
on the defendant's part, he or she has to be reckless as to
whet her the person is on probation.

SENATOR DYSON asked if a parole officer could have sexual

relations with his wife if she is on parole and under the
supervi sion of another parole officer.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 18, 2013



M5. CARPENETI said no; there is a nmarriage defense in current
statute that would apply to penetration and Version U adds a
marri age defense to fourth degree sexual assault for contact.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the marriage defense applies to people in
long-term commtted rel ati onshi ps.

M5. CARPENETI said no, but she had an anendnent that would
address a preexisting relationship.

CHAIR COGHILL noted that M. Steiner was available to answer
guestions. He asked M. Carpeneti to continue the sectional
anal ysi s.

M5. CARPENETI said Section 4, the definition section for
probation and parole officers, is unchanged.

SENATOR DYSON observed that Section 4 creates a different
statute of I|imtations for parole and probation officers
conpared to DHSS enpl oyees or police and correctional officers.

M5. CARPENETI clarified that it was a definitional section that
applied to sexual assault in the third and fourth degree. The
definition for "peace officer” is the sane as in existing |aw
and the definition for "probation officer” is the sane as the
definition in Title 33. It is a person appointed by the
commi ssioner of corrections and includes probation officers in
specialty courts. She noted that this issue arose |ast sumer
when a probation officer at a therapeutic court in Anchorage was
havi ng sexual relations with soneone on probation.

SENATOR DYSON i ndicated that he would return to the topic later

1:53: 00 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the reference to "18 or 19 years of age"
is specific to a juvenile facility.

M5. CARPENETI expl ai ned that people who are age 18 or 19 would
still be under juvenile probation or are in juvenile facilities.
A different and nore serious statute would apply to the
prosecution of a person if the child were under age 18.

Section 5 is wunchanged from the original bill. It prohibits

sexual contact between a probation or parole officer and a
person on probation or parole. The prohibition also applies to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 18, 2013



juvenile facilities. The nmarriage defense would apply as would
the affirmati ve defense of a preexisting rel ationship.

Section 6 is wunchanged from the original bill. [It is the
definitional section for "juvenile facility staff,”™ "juvenile
probation officer," "parole officer," "peace officer,"” and

"probation officer."]

Section 7 adds sexual assault in the fourth degree to the
defenses that are currently available to sexual assault in the
third degree. She noted that this currently applies to police
of ficers and correctional officers.

Section [8] clarifies that it is the court that orders a person
not to contact a victimor witness as a condition of sentence,
bail release, or while the person is under official detention;
and it is the parole board that orders a person on parole not to
contact a victimor wtness.

Section 9 anmends [Section 8] of the original bill. At the
suggestion of this commttee, it |eaves forfeiture discretionary
with the court and requires the defendant to be convi ct ed.

1:55:49 PM
SENATOR DYSON raised the question of equal protection. "Wy are
we seizing property fromthe john and not the hooker," he asked.

M5. CARPENETI said that the rational 1is that patrons of
prostitutes are generally in a position to have property and
they mnmeke the «crine happen according to their power. A
prostitute is generally controlled by sonebody el se and whatever
property she has isn't necessarily hers to be seized.

SENATOR DYSON decl ared that the |aw absolutely should not speak
to the noney a person has or does not have and also treat them
differently.

M5. CARPENETI responded that the adm nistration would certainly
entertain making this apply to all people convicted of
prostitution.

1: 58: 02 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the standard is for equal
protection differences anong gender.

M5. CARPENETI offered her understanding that gender differences
are the highest scrutiny.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 18, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI suggested she return with a list of the
strong reasons for doing this. He recalled it was the
i nt er nedi at e st andard.

M5. CARPENETI agreed to follow up.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked - pertaining to forfeiture - how to
di stingui sh between those trafficking on their own for profit
and those who are being trafficked.

M5. CARPENETI explained that a person who is on his or her own
and acting as a prostitute is not considered a sex trafficker;
he or she is considered a prostitute and is prosecuted under AS
11.66.100. Sex traffickers force other people to submt to
prostitution, and they are prosecuted under AS 11.66.110 - AS
11. 66. 135.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if there was a way under the forfeiture |aw
to get at the person who is driving the prostitution.

M5. CARPENETI explained that under current |aw the person who
does the trafficking could have their property forfeited.

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that a prostitute working on his or her
own would be the only one who does not fall under the forfeiture
I aw.

M5. CARPENETI agreed, under the current drafting.

2:00: 27 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his concern centered on wonen who are
forced into prostitution or are put in situations where they
have little choice other than prostitution. It was not his
intent to crimnalize that behavior or to seize what little
assets they may have. He added that he had no problem applying
the forfeiture statute to a wonan who was running a call girl
center.

M5. CARPENETI responded that there was progress toward that goal
by meking the forfeiture discretionary, and the court wouldn't
do it without the prosecution asking.

2:01: 48 PM

Section 10 renoves the statute of Ilimtations for crimnal
prosecution of distribution of <child pornography, felony sex

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- February 18, 2013



trafficking (unclassified, class A or class B felonies), and
human trafficking (class A or class B fel onies).

CHAIR COGHI LL asked why the statute of Ilimtations for
prosecution for the distribution of child pornography was
i ncl uded wi th ki dnappi ng or nurder.

M5. CARPENETI responded that a person who distributes child

por nography does sonething that will victimze that child for
the rest of his or her life. For that reason, DOL wants the
ability to prosecute that offender any time the victim cones
forward provided the wevidence is still available and the

prosecution can prove the case beyond a reasonabl e doubt.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the prosecution would have to know the
victim

M5. CARPENETI answered no, just that the victimwas a child.

SENATOR DYSON asked how the prosecution would determ ne that the
victimwas a child if his or her identity wasn't known.

M5. CARPENETI said the prosecutor would have to evaluate the
case and |look at the pictures to try to determne the victins
age. Sonetinmes there is no question that the victimis a child
and sonetines it's too close to tell, so the person probably
woul dn't be prosecuted in that circunstance. However, when it is
clear that the victimis a child and the evidence is avail able,
it would be a shame not to be able to prosecute the person even
after the general 10-year statute of |imtations.

2:05:01 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL asked what the standard of proof would be in these
cases.

M5. CARPENETI answered that the burden of proof in crimnal
prosecution is beyond a reasonabl e doubt.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked why, in paragraph (8) relating to sex
trafficking in violation of AS 11.66.110 - 11.66.130, the victim
is under 20 years of age.

M5. CARPENETI explained that I|ast year when the |egislature
raised the penalties for sex trafficking to an wunclassified
felony, the testinony persuaded legislators that an 18 or 19-
year-old girl or boy deserved the highest |evel of protection

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 18, 2013



for this crime, so they raised the age limt to under 20 years
of age. Previously it was under 18 years of age.

SENATOR DYSON conmment ed that that was probl enatic.

MS. CARPENETI said it was included here because of the change
the |l egislature made, but it was certainly open for discussion.

She expl ained that Sections 11 and 12 nove electronic nonitoring
by a global positioning system (GPS) device from the civil
protective order arena to the bail statute. These sections give
the court the discretion, in releasing on bail a person in
connection with a crime involving donestic violence or stalking,
to require GPS tracking of the defendant according to guidelines
adopted by the Departnment of Corrections (DOC) in consultation
with the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

CHAI R COCGHI LL noted that this was perm ssive.

MS. CARPENETI agreed, and added that the judge considers the
safety of the victim the victims famly, and the conmunity and
then sets standards that are reasonabl e under the circunstances.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the guidelines currently require
active or passive.

M5. CARPENETI said DOC has not adopted guidelines, but her
understanding was that it probably would be active nonitoring.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  said he would only reconmend active
monitoring if the purpose was to protect people from stal king.

M5. CARPENETI said Section 13 requires a person arrested for a
violation of a condition of release in connection wth a
donmestic violence crine to appear in person or by telephone in
front of a court before that person can be released from
cust ody.

Section 14 authorizes the attorney general to nmake witten
application to a court for a warrant to do a wretapping
investigation for potential sex trafficking in the first or
second degree, or human trafficking in the first degree.

2:10: 12 PM
SENATOR DYSON commented on the bal ance between protecting public
safety and over-crimnalizing behavior, and the issue of

privacy. He noted that this section authorizes the attorney

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 18, 2013



general to intercept telephone calls without first obtaining a
war r ant .

M5. CARPENETI clarified that to place a wiretap a warrant from
the court is required.

SENATOR DYSON asked if in the past it was possible to get a
wiretap on a pinp or sex trafficker.

M5. CARPENETI said no; only those crimes listed in [AS
12.37.010] are available for the attorney general to nake a
request for a wretap.

SENATOR DYSON asked if a police officer could get a warrant.

M5. CARPENETI replied that a police officer could get a d ass
warrant, but not for wretapping.

Section 15 expands the rape shield law to apply to sexual
conduct by the conplaining witness to both before and after the
al l eged crine. It would require a defendant to request
perm ssion to use this evidence five days before a trial, unless
the information was | earned after the deadline occurred.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI voiced concern that the requirenent to
apply five days before trial <clashes wth a defendant's
constitutional rights. If an attorney makes a m stake and nekes
the request four days before trial, the client will be punished
and will not be able to introduce that evidence.

M5. CARPENETI opined that the judge would use his or her
di scretion in considering the request.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI pointed out that the |anguage says, "the
def endant shall apply for an order of the court five days before
trial." There is no good cause |anguage and judge has no
di scretion, which causes the constitutional problens.

MS. CARPENETI said the idea is to encourage both the prosecution
and defense to raise the issue early so that a conplaining
witness knows the paranmeters of the evidence that wll be
i ntroduced. This benefits all parties.

CHAIR COGH LL noted that one concern is whether this creates
anot her procedural hurdle for the defendant.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 18, 2013



M5. CARPENETI suggested the commttee ask the public defender if
this answers his concerns, because it canme at his suggestion.

2:15:56 PM

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Public Defender, Ofice of the Public Defender
Department of Admnistration (DQA), acknowl edged that he
suggested the current |anguage, and agreed that adding good
cause |anguage would help safeguard against due process
vi ol ati ons.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked if the five-day |anguage could be deleted if
good cause | anguage were added.

MR. STEINER said that including both the five-day requirenent
and the good cause |anguage would push defense |awers into
making a tinely application and the good cause |anguage woul d
allow them to argue that they had nmade a mstake in not filing
ahead of tine.

2:18: 00 PM

M5. CARPENETI said Sections 16 and 17 require the court to
personally interview a witness who is claimng a Fifth Arendnment
privilege not to testify. The court must then nake witten
findings of fact and conclusions of law in a seal ed order.

CHAIR COGH LL noted that legislative legal highlighted a
potential Fifth Amendnent i ssue.

VB. CARPENETI explained that ~current law says that the
information proffered from that closed hearing is inadmssible
and privileged. It cannot be used for any other purpose.

CHAIR COGHI LL offered his understanding that the bill requires
the wwtness to talk directly to the judge; the information isn't
prof f ered.

M5. CARPENETI agreed and explained the reasoning for the
proposed <change is that when the attorney proffers the
information and the w tness doesn't speak or even appear it's
not possible for the court to evaluate the credibility of that
Wi t ness.

2:20: 13 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if this would apply only when a
witness is seeking immunity or in other situations where a
witness is invoking their Fifth Anmendnent rights.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 18, 2013



M5. CARPENETI replied that it applies to a wtness who is
invoking their Fifth Amendment right not to testify and if the
court finds that they do have a Fifth Amendnent privilege, the
state would have to give imunity to that person in order for
them to testify. Alaska has transactional immunity, which nmeans
that the person granted immunity could not be prosecuted for
what they say even if the information mght be available from
anot her source.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if any Alaska courts had agreed to
this, because requiring a person to testify in front of a judge
when they've claimed a Fifth Anendnent privilege changes a
bedrock constitutional right.

M5. CARPENETI said she believes that a court that is talking to
a witness could ask questions that do not require a person to
say they commtted a particular crine. In this setting, the
court is trying to evaluate the credibility of both the wtness
and the proffer offered by their attorney, and that is very
difficult if the court can't talk to that witness. Sonetines the
Wi tness doesn't even appear at these proceedi ngs.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI reiterated that this was a dramatic change
of Al askans' constitutional rights not testify against
t hensel ves. That is the philosophical underpinning of the Fifth
Amendrent. However, this provision changes that right and says
that a person has to testify to a judge and then possibly before
an entire court if their Version of the facts if found not
credi bl e.

M5. CARPENET! clarified that this pertains to a witness who is
asking for immunity not to testify in a prosecution against
anot her person. She agreed that it would raise a challenge, but
it was an effort to find a way that is both constitutional and
fair that gives a judge as much information as possible to nmake
a reasonabl e determ nation about the credibility of the w tness.
Section 17 provides the state the ability to bring an
interlocutory appeal that decision to the court of appeals.

She offered to wrk on |anguage that may raise |ess
constitutional concern before rem nding nenbers that only the
judge, the attorney for the witness, and possibly the court of
appeal s sees or hears the witness's information.

2:26: 03 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI pointed out that if the judge finds the
wi tness not credible, he or she would be forced to testify in a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 18, 2013



case that could potentially lead to the witness going to jail
He posed a hypothetical exanple to illustrate the concern that
it's the judge that determnes a wtness's credibility and
whet her or not they get to exercise their constitutional rights.

M5. CARPENETI clarified that it's whether the person gets to
exercise their constitutional rights and then get imunity for
it. The person could not be forced to testify otherw se.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she was saying that if this were
to becone law that the state could not force the wtness to
testify before a jury.

MS. CARPENETI confirnmed that the state can't force people to
tal k.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if this provision would apply only
when a witness seeks inmunity.

M5. CARPENETI said yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said this person seeks imunity and then
the judge tries to decide whether the person is eligible or not.

M5. CARPENETI said yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if under current |aw the prosecutor
deci des whether to grant imunity to a person.

M5. CARPENETI explained that the prosecutor who eval uates these
i ssues nmakes a decision about granting imunity based on limted
information from the court about whether it's a |owlevel
felony, a high-level felony, or a msdeneanor. |f the prosecutor
grants immunity, the witness would testify and be inmmune from
any prosecution based on what he or she said. If the state
decided against granting immunity, the wtness wuld be
unavai l abl e and woul d not have to testify.

2:28: 58 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked for confirmation that the state woul d
not be able to conpel sonebody to testify.

MS5. CARPENETI agreed and reiterated that the prosecution wants

the witness to appear in person so that the judge can evaluate
his or her credibility.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 18, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the witness would appear before
the judge after the prosecutor has granted i mmunity.

M5. CARPENETI answered that the witness would appear before the
grant of immnity, unless the prosecution has already decided
that it's fair to grant imunity w thout a hearing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the prosecution brings a person
before a judge to see whether that person should receive a grant
of immunity.

M5. CARPENETI clarified that the prosecution doesn't bring
anyone in; the witness clains a Fifth Anendnent privilege and
that person and their attorney goes in canera in front of the
court.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI posed the hypothetical situation that the
prosecution wants a witness to a crinme who is potentially an
acconplice to testify in that case. The witness clainms his or
her Fifth Amendnment privilege and declines to testify. He asked
if she was saying that the witness could not be forced to appear
before a judge who would admnister an oath and nake a
determ nation about the Fifth Amendment cl aim

2:30: 56 PM

M5. CARPENETI replied that it would depend on the circunstances,
but if the person clainmed a Fifth Arendnent right to not testify
in the case, the judge would probably sua sponte appoint an
attorney and set up a hearing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the procedure under current law is
that the prosecution would subpoena the witness to testify and
when on the stand and under oath that witness would claim their
Fifth Amendnent right and refuse to testify. Wth this proposed
change, the witness could be forced to appear before a judge who
woul d decide whether he has a Fifth Amendment right not to
testify.

M5. CARPENET! disagreed; this pertains to a situation where a
person does not want to testify and makes a Fifth Amendnent
claim The judge schedules a hearing in canera and appoints an
attorney to represent the wtness. The prosecution does not call
the witness to the hearing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if under current |aw the person would
refuse to testify claimng their Fifth Amendnent right while on

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 18, 2013



the stand, but under this bill the person would be required to
testify in the judge's chanbers.

M5. CARPENETI clarified that this procedure is already under
current law. The bill only requires the person claimng the
Fifth Amendnment privilege to appear in person at the hearing to
answer questions so the judge can evaluate their credibility.

2:32:43 PM
CHAI R COCGHI LL set SB 22 aside until later in the hearing.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
Select Coormittee on Legislative Ethics

2:33:28 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL announced the next order of business wuld be a
confirmation hearing to reappoint Gary J. Turner to the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics.

GARY J. TURNER, appointee, Select Commttee on Legislative
Ethics, said he was the director of the Kenai Peninsula College
and had served on the ethics commttee for six years.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if he had anything to share about his
experience serving on the ethics commttee.

MR. TURNER rel ayed that he enjoyed serving on the conmttee and
particul arly appreciated what Joyce Anderson had done to educate
Al askans about the work the committee does.

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that he served on the commttee with M.
Turner and they had many robust conversations. Finding no
guestions, he asked for a notion.

2:35:53 PM
SENATOR DYSON noved to forward the nane Gary J. Turner to the
full body for consideration.

CHAIR COGHI LL rem nded nenbers that signing the report in no way
reflects any intent to vote for or against the appointee.
Fi ndi ng no objection, he announced that the name Gary J. Turner
woul d be forwarded to the full body for consideration.

SB 22-CRIMES; VICTIMS;, CH LD ABUSE AND NEGLECT

2:37:11 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 18, 2013



CHAIR COGHI LL returned attention to SB 22 and asked M. Steiner
if he had any comments on Sections 1-16.

MR. STEINER said his first concern relates to the structure of
the defense in Sections 3-7 which deals wth probation and
parole officers in fourth degree sexual assault. The problemis
that the marriage exception does not accommpdate |ong-term
rel ati onships or gay couples who are prohibited from marrying,
which opens it to a constitutional challenge. He suggested that
narrowly focusing on the specific conduct of a parole officer
who is using his or her position of authority to coerce sonebody
would elimnate the need for exceptions and avoid the potential
of unintentionally crimnalizing certain behavior.

2:41:17 PM

MR. STEI NER said he suggested the |anguage in Section 15, which
requires a defense lawer to seek permssion to introduce
certain evidence five days before trial, but also including good
cause | anguage woul d ensure agai nst due process violations that
would hurt the defendant through no fault of their own.
Responding to a request for further clarification, he said it
would mtigate potential harm to the defendant if it said the
defense could apply for an order during trial if the request is
based on information |earned after the deadline, during the
trial, or for other good cause.

MR. STEINER said his concern with Section 16 centers on the
statenment on page 10, lines 5-6. It says that the proffer in the
testinmony of the witness is privileged and inadm ssible for any
ot her purpose, but it doesn't say how that information should be
handled. If for whatever reason the court wunsealed that in
canera hearing and the information got out it coul d
unintentionally create transactional immunity for that person.
What's discussed is the need to have the person testify before a
judge to determne credibility, but what's at stake is what the
person would testify to.

2: 44: 57 PM
SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked for an explanation of the current
procedure and how the bill would change it.

MR. STEINER explained that if the state calls a wtness to
testify and the person asserts a Fifth Amendnent privilege, the
state can seek an order from the court ordering that person to
testify. If the state seeks that order, a hearing is held to
determne the validity of the privilege. If the court determ nes

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 18, 2013



the privilege is valid, it rests upon the state to nmke a
determ nati on of whether or not to grant imunity.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI of fered his understanding that the wtness
who is seeking the privilege can't be conpelled to testify, but
the bill would conpel the witness to provide testinony in an in
canmera interview.

MR. STEINER said the current procedure is to have a proffer by
the person's attorney regarding the substance of the testinony,
and there is often argunment about how that mght inplicate
sonmebody in a crine. The wtness currently does not provide
testinmony to the judge in canera.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI described Section 16 as a fairly dramatic
change in the treatnment of Fifth Amendnent issues because it
virtually forces a person to testify, albeit in canera.

MR. STEI NER agreed that was what it would do.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI conmented that it was a big change.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked WM. Carpeneti to continue the sectional
revi ew of Version U.

2:49:13 PM

M5. CARPENETI said Section 17 allows the state to bring an
interlocutory appeal of the court's decision that the wtness
has a valid claimof privilege to the court of appeals.

Section 18 requires a defendant who clains credit for tinme spent
in a treatnment program as a condition of bail to file witten
notice 10 days before the sentencing hearing on that offense
The notice nust include the nunber of days the person is
claimng. A court may not consider a request for credit that is
made nore than 90 days after the deadline except for good cause.

She explained that the intent is to avoid the situation of
having to litigate the issue years after the treatnent ended.

CHAIR COGHILL stated that the 10 days before and 90 days after
are hard boundaries unless there is good cause.

M5. CARPENETI said the public defender suggested adding a
provision to address the situation where a person may be in
treatment while pending appeal. Paragraph (l) in Section 18
addresses this situation and requires the defendant to request

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 18, 2013



credit for the time spent in a treatnent program pendi ng appea
within 90 days after the case is returned to the trial court
foll owi ng appeal. She suggested inserting a good cause exception
in this provision as well.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the good cause |anguage would fall on
page 11, line 7.

M5. CARPENETI said she wasn't sure where is should appear in the
section.

Section 19 requires a defendant claimng credit for tine spent
in a treatnment program as a condition of probation or a
condition of bail in connection wth a petition to revoke
probation to file notice of the request 10 days before the
di sposition hearing on the petition. The notice nust include the
nunmber of requested days of credit. A court nay not consider a
request for credit made nore than 90 days after the deadline
except for good cause.

2:53:12 PM
Section 20 provides that a person convicted of a sex trafficking
crinme is ineligible for a suspended inposition of sentence.

Section 21 is unchanged fromthe original bill. It requires the
court in sentencing a person convicted of two or nore crimes of
distribution of child pornography, possession  of child

por nography, or distribution of indecent material to mnors to
give at |east one day of consecutive tinme for each crinme or
attenpted or solicited crine for which the defendant is being
sent enced.

Sections 22-23 were previously discussed in connection to the
Yako Col i ns deci si on.

SENATOR DYSON worried that these sections would continue the
pattern of renoving judicial di scretion. He offered his
under st andi ng t hat t hese sections woul d elimnate t he
possibility of referral to a three-judge panel.

M5. CARPENETI said that's not correct. The Collins decision
| owered the standards for referring sex felony cases to a three-
j udge panel conpared to other cases that can be referred. It did
not elimnate the possibility of referral.

SENATOR DYSON poi nted out the |anguage on page 12, line 10, that
says a court may not refer a case to a three-judge panel.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 18, 2013



VB. CARPENET]I added that it's based on the criteria in
par agraphs (1) or (2).

CHAI R COGHI LL asked her to restate the standard the Collins case
set .

2:56:13 PM

M5. CARPENETI explained that a case can be referred to a three-
j udge panel wunder circunstances where the inposition of the
sentence would be manifestly unjust. In addition to factors in
mtigation and aggravation that the |egislature has adopted, the
courts have recognized two types of aggravating factors that
they call nonstatutory aggravators. One is that the defendant
has extraordinary prospects for rehabilitation. The other is
that the defendant's post discovery conduct was exenplary. The
Collins case addressed itself to the legislature that raised the
sentencing ranges for sex felonies in 2006 and had introduced a
Letter of Intent stating the reasons for increasing the ranges.
The court still has discretion within the ranges to sentence a
person to inprisonment. According to the Letter of Intent, the
| egislature did that because of the finding that sex predators
are nore likely to reoffend, less likely to be rehabilitated,
cause serious life-long injury to the victins of their crimnes
and various other things so to justify the reasons for raising
these ranges that the court has discretion within the ranges to
sentence a person.

CHAI R COGHI LL sunmarized that a case can be referred to a three-
judge panel if the defendant shows extraordinary prospects for
rehabilitation and does not have a history of behavior that is
prosecut abl e for sex offenses.

M5. CARPENETI said that the courts currently recognize that it
can be a reason to send a defendant to a three-judge panel if
that person has extraordinary prospects for rehabilitation. The
Collins decision said that in sex felonies that a defendant can
be referred to a three-judge panel if the person has nornal
prospects for rehabilitation. That is not what the legislature
i ntended when it made the sentencing changes in 2006. She said
DOL can find nothing in the legislative mnutes or Letter of
Intent that would indicate that the |legislature had any
intention of changing the standards that currently exist for
sending a sex felony case to a three-judge panel. That's what
the dissent in the court of appeals said.

2:59: 05 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 18, 2013



CHAIR COGHI LL sunmarized that the three-judge panel is still
available but it has to be for extraordinary prospects for
rehabilitation and the person nust not have a history of
unprosecut ed, undocunented, or undetected sexual offenses.

M5. CARPENETI responded that the second one is that a mtigating
factor that the Collins court recognized. It plays into whether
or not a person is a first felony offender, a second, or a third
felony offender. There was nothing in the |legislative hearings
in 2006 that would indicate that should be a non-statutory
mtigater.

CHAI R COGHI LL suggested the conmttee carefully consider making
it very clear that the intent in this bill is to overturn the
Collins decision and replace it with these standards.

M5. CARPENETI reiterated that it was the intent of the
Departnment of Law to return to pre Collins, which is that the
court would evaluate a defendant in a sex felony case according
to the sanme standards as for other felonies.

CHAIR COGHILL said the commttee would start at this point at
the next hearing. [SB 22 was held in conmttee.]

3:01:19 PM

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Chair Coghill adjourned the neeting at 3:01 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- February 18, 2013



